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RECOMMENDATION That the Cultural Heritage Commission:

1. Declare the subject property an Historic-Cultural Monument per Los Angeles
Administrative Code Chapter 9, Division 22, Article 1, Section 22.171.7.

2. Adopt the staff report and findings.

VINCENT P. BERTONI, AICP
Director of Planning

[SIGNED ORIGINAL IN FILE] [SIGNED ORIGINAL IN FILE]

Ken Bernstein, AICP, Principal City Planner Shannon Ryan, Senior City Planner
Office of Historic Resources Office of Historic Resources

[SIGNED ORIGINAL IN FILE] [SIGNED ORIGINAL IN FILE]
Lambert M. Giessinger, Senior Architect Melissa Jones, City Planning Associate
Office of Historic Resources Office of Historic Resources
Attachments: Commission/Staff Site Inspection Photos—October 27, 2022

Historic-Cultural Monument Application
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FINDINGS

e The Jay Risk Standard Oil Co. Service Station “exemplifies significant contributions to the
broad cultural, economic or social history of the nation, state, city or community” as an
excellent and very rare example of a 1919 service station in Eagle Rock that appears to be
the oldest remaining service station in the city. It is also significant for its association with
Route 66 as an automotive-serving business providing goods and services to the traveling
public.

e The Jay Risk Standard Oil Co. Service Station “embodies the distinctive characteristics of
a style, type, period, or method of construction” as an excellent example of an early design
for service stations.

CRITERIA

The criterion is the Cultural Heritage Ordinance which defines a historical or cultural monument as
any site (including significant trees or other plant life located thereon), building or structure of
particular historic or cultural significance to the City of Los Angeles if it meets at least one of the
following criteria:

1. Is identified with important events of national, state, or local history, or exemplifies
significant contributions to the broad cultural, economic or social history of the nation, state,
city or community;

2. Is associated with the lives of historic personages important to national, state, city, or local
history; or

3. Embodies the distinctive characteristics of a style, type, period, or method of construction;
or represents a notable work of a master designer, builder, or architect whose individual
genius influenced his or her age.

SUMMARY

The Jay Risk Standard Oil Co. Service Station is a one-story commercial building located on the
north side of W. Colorado Boulevard between Mt. Royal Drive and Vincent Avenue in Eagle Rock.
It was constructed in 1919 for Standard Oil of California, utilizing the “House with Canopy”
vernacular service station design. In 1931, the subject structure was moved by John Milton ‘Jay’
Risk (1889-1963) from Standard Oil's main plant and maintenance facility at 1726-1756 N. Spring
Street, across from the Standard Oil Company Sales Department Building/Woman'’s Building
(1727 N. Spring St., HCM #1160), to its current location on Colorado Boulevard, which functioned
as a segment of the U.S. Highway 66 (Route 66) beginning around 1934. Standard Oil’'s main plant
and maintenance facility appears to have stored, sold, moved, and possibly constructed service
stations and related buildings; it is unclear if the subject structure was an active service station
from 1919 to 1931, but it served the Eagle Rock community as an oil service station from 1931 to
1939. In 1939, the oil service station was converted into a fruit and vegetable market and later,
beginning in 1947, it served as a plumbing office.

The widespread use of the automobile came in the years just before the United States entered the
First World War in 1917. Up until that time the passenger car was a luxury item. Overall, auto
registration in Los Angeles County, numbering less than 20,000 in 1910, exceeded 100,000 by
1920 and by 1930 had reached almost 800,000. The increase in popular ownership came about
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through the development of an affordable car, specifically the Ford Model T, which was first
introduced in 1908.

Beginning in the early 1900s, there emerged new building types — from gas stations to drive-in
restaurants — which served the motorist. However, the most numerous were gas stations. The
result of the need to serve a large number of cars in a safe manner off the street, and the creation
of an effective standardized pump, led to the emergence of the service station as a free-standing
structure. The most important force behind the emergence of the free-standing service station was
the oil industry. As early as 1905 some oil companies, such as Standard Oil of California, began
experimenting with free-standing stations that sold only their brand of gasoline. Soon local
investors constructed buildings and then contracted with the oil companies. By the First World War
stations were being opened across the country at the rate of 1,200 per year. By the late 1920s gas
stations had become one of the most common building types in the city. The number of gasoline
stations of all types in Los Angeles increased from about 170 in 1920 to almost 700 by 1925, and
to more than 1,500 by 1930. The result was that, by 1930, Los Angeles had an oversupply; many
did not survive the Great Depression. Nonetheless, the modest filling station had established itself
as the dominant form of automobile-derived architecture and it became the model for other auto-
oriented commercial building types.

The Standard Oil Company was established by John D. Rockefeller in Ohio in 1870 and by the
late 1870s, Standard Oil had become one of the largest companies in the world. The company first
established itself in California by opening an office in San Francisco in 1878 and soon after
acquired oil-related assets in Southern California. In 1907, Standard Oil of California introduced
the first gasoline drive-up facility at its Seattle kerosene refinery. By the mid-1910s, the Standard
Oil Company was the largest oil producer in the state, and a decade later, it was the leading
gasoline marketer in the western United States. In 1914, Standard Oil acquired National Supply
Stations, Inc.’s chain of 34 service stations which were located in the greater Los Angeles area,
San Diego, San Francisco, and Oakland; the chain grew to 2,200 stations by 1925 with locations
in Oregon and Washington state, as well as California. In 1926, the company purchased Pacific
Oil Company, which increased its production capacity by nearly 50 percent. The company
reorganized its corporate structure and assumed the new name Standard Oil Company of
California, now known as the Chevron Corporation.

Rectangular in plan, the subject structure is of steel-frame construction with sheet steel walls and
a 15-foot canopy extending south. The roof is side gabled with standing seam metal cladding. The
primary, south-facing facade features a centrally located entrance consisting of a wooden door
with divided-lites between two large fixed multi-lite windows and is fronted by a canopy. The south
edge of the canopy is supported by two steel I-beam posts and a simple steel skeletal structure
forms an elegant arch, meeting in the center. The east- and west-facing fagades feature two large,
steel, divided-lite pivot windows. The rear, north-facing fagade has a single, fixed divided-lite
window on the east side, and a large door opening on the south side.

John Milton ‘Jay’ Risk was born in Scotland, Missouri in 1889. He moved to Los Angeles in 1921,
first working in shoe sales. In 1922, Risk opened a garage on Bunker Hill, at 709 W. 3rd Street,
and in 1929 he married and moved to Eagle Rock. In 1931, he purchased the subject building from
Standard Oil of California and moved it to its current location at 1659 W. Colorado Boulevard, a
mile and a half from his home. It is not clear if Risk ran the service station when he moved it to
Eagle Rock. As of the 1930 Census, he was listed as a manager of a radio shop, but from 1934 to
1936, he was listed in the Los Angeles directory as an oil driller. The service station is listed as J
M Risk 1659 Colorado under the Oil and Lubricants Dealer section of the directory during those
years. Risk passed away in 1963.
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The subject structure has experienced several alterations that include the removal of the wooden
entrance door, the door on the rear, north-facing facade, and several steel, multi-lite windows at
unknown dates. In addition, it lost its drive-through street access with the development of the
surrounding business block in the mid-1950s.

SurveyLA, the citywide historic resources survey, identified the subject structure as individually
eligible for listing under the national, state, and local designation programs as an excellent and
very rare example of a 1919 service station in Eagle Rock. It was also noted that this structure
appears to be the oldest remaining service station building in the city.

DISCUSSION

The Jay Risk Standard Oil Co. Service Station meets two of the Historic-Cultural Monument
criteria.

It “exemplifies significant contributions to the broad cultural, economic or social history of the
nation, state, city or community” as an excellent and very rare example of a 1919 service station
in Eagle Rock that illustrates early 20th century car-oriented commercial development. In great
part because of the Ford Model T, which was introduced in 1908, the motor car became the
dominant mode of transportation in Southern California in the 1920s. The impact of this can best
be seen in buildings created to provide for the needs of the car and motorists, leading to new
relationships with the street and surrounding buildings. Whereas earlier urban buildings had been
set adjacent or close to each other to form a visually solid street wall, the automobile-influenced
buildings stood alone, each surrounded by its own driveway and parking lot as exemplified by the
subject property. Although the construction of the adjacent buildings in the 1950s blocked drive-
through access and the original curb cuts are no longer extant, car-oriented buildings from the
early 20th century are increasingly rare, and the subject property appears to be the oldest
remaining service station in the city.

The subject property is also significant for its association with Route 66 as an automotive-serving
business providing goods and services to the traveling public. Established in 1926, U.S. Highway
66, more widely known as Route 66, was part of the first nationally designated highway system
and was one of three Southern California east-west highways that extended from the Colorado
River to the Pacific Coast. Sometime between 1934 and 1940, Route 66 was routed from
Pasadena, over the Colorado Street Bridge, and through Eagle Rock along Colorado Boulevard
and Eagle Rock Boulevard, past the subject property, to connect to the Downtown Los Angeles
terminus. The highway played an important role as a migratory route that facilitated large
population shifts from the East, Midwest, and Southwest into Southern California, and also served
as a maijor corridor for tourists seeking to experience California and the Southwest. The presence
of the highway led to substantial numbers of restaurants, motels, tourist courts, service garages,
gas stations, and other tourist and auto businesses in direct response to traffic along the route.
Automobile services including gas stations, automobile dealerships and garages, car washes, and
service stations and drive-in markets, like the subject building, provided goods and services to the
traveling public along Route 66, in addition to serving local and regional needs. The subject
property conveys the history of Route 66 in Eagle Rock.

Furthermore, the subject property “embodies the distinctive characteristics of a style, type, period,
or method of construction” as an excellent example of an early design for service stations. The Jay
Risk Standard Oil Co. Service Station is one of the earliest gasoline station design forms known
as the House with Canopy, which became the standard for service stations. Starting in 1914,
Standard Oil of California pioneered the House with Canopy service station design and by the mid-
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1920s there were thousands of these Standard Oil stations in the western United States. This
design form was later copied by other oil suppliers to distribute their products throughout the
country. Standard Oil of California was storing, selling, moving, and possibly building these
ubiquitous service stations from their Main Plant and Maintenance Facilities at 1726-1756 N.
Spring Street and by 1925, there were over 250 of these service stations in the Los Angeles area
alone. However, the subject property appears to be the last remaining example of the innovative
House with Canopy design.

Despite interior and exterior alterations over the years, the subject property retains a sufficient
level of integrity of location, materials, design, feeling, and association to convey its significance.

CALIFORNIA ENVIRONMENTAL QUALITY ACT (“CEQA”) FINDINGS

State of California CEQA Guidelines, Article 19, Section 15308, Class 8 “consists of actions taken
by regulatory agencies, as authorized by state or local ordinance, to assure the maintenance,
restoration, enhancement, or protection of the environment where the regulatory process involves
procedures for protection of the environment.”

State of California CEQA Guidelines Article 19, Section 15331, Class 31 “consists of projects
limited to maintenance, repair, stabilization, rehabilitation, restoration, preservation, conservation
or reconstruction of historical resources in a manner consistent with the Secretary of the Interior’s
Standards for the Treatment of Historic Properties with Guidelines for Preserving, Rehabilitating,
Restoring, and Reconstructing Historic buildings.”

The designation of the Jay Risk Standard Oil Co. Service Station as an Historic-Cultural Monument
in accordance with Chapter 9, Article 1, of The City of Los Angeles Administrative Code (“LAAC”)
will ensure that future construction activities involving the subject property are regulated in
accordance with Section 22.171.14 of the LAAC. The purpose of the designation is to prevent
significant impacts to a Historic-Cultural Monument through the application of the standards set
forth in the LAAC. Without the regulation imposed by way of the pending designation, the historic
significance and integrity of the subject property could be lost through incompatible alterations and
new construction and the demolition of an irreplaceable historic site/open space. The Secretary of
the Interior’s Standards for Rehabilitation are expressly incorporated into the LAAC and provide
standards concerning the historically appropriate construction activities which will ensure the
continued preservation of the subject property.

The City of Los Angeles has determined based on the whole of the administrative record, that
substantial evidence supports that the Project is exempt from CEQA pursuant to CEQA Guidelines
Section Article 19, Section 15308, Class 8 and Class 31, and none of the exceptions to a
categorical exemption pursuant to CEQA Guidelines Section 15300.2 applies. The project was
found to be exempt based on the following:

The use of Categorical Exemption Class 8 in connection with the proposed
designation is consistent with the goals of maintaining, restoring, enhancing, and
protecting the environment through the imposition of regulations designed to
prevent the degradation of Historic-Cultural Monuments.

The use of Categorical Exemption Class 31 in connection with the proposed
designation is consistent with the goals relating to the preservation, rehabilitation,
restoration and reconstruction of historic buildings and sites in a manner consistent
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with the Secretary of the Interior's Standards for the Treatment of Historic
Properties.

Categorical Exemption ENV-2022-6497-CE was prepared on November 7, 2022.

BACKGROUND

On September 9, 2022, the Director of Planning determined that the application for the proposed
designation of the subject property as an Historic-Cultural Monument was complete. On October
6, 2022, the Cultural Heritage Commission voted to take the property under consideration. On
October 27, 2022, a subcommittee of the Commission consisting of Commissioners Kanner and
Milofsky conducted a site inspection of the property, accompanied by staff from the Office of
Historic Resources. In accordance with Los Angeles Administrative Code Section 22.171.10, on
November 30, 2022, the owner requested up to a 60-day extension to the time for the Commission
to act. With consent of the property owner, on December 1, 2022, the Cultural Heritage
Commission voted to continue the final hearing to February 16, 2023. The expiration date of
February 18, 2023, is tolled, and a revised date will be determined pursuant to the Mayor’s March
21, 2020 Public Order Under City of Los Angeles Emergency Authority re: Tolling of Deadlines
Prescribed in the Municipal Code and April 17, 2020 Public Order Under City of Los Angeles
Emergency Authority re: Tolling HCIDLA Deadlines and Revising Expiration of Emergency Orders.
The time to act on this item has been tolled for the duration of the local emergency period. Please
note that other State law provisions may also apply.
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RECOMMENDATION That the Cultural Heritage Commission:

1. Take the property under consideration as an Historic-Cultural Monument per Los
Angeles Administrative Code Chapter 9, Division 22, Article 1, Section 22.171.10
because the application and accompanying photo documentation suggest the submittal
warrants further investigation.

2. Adopt the report findings.

VINCENT P. BERTONI, AICP
Director of Planning

[SIGNED ORIGINAL IN FILE] [SIGNED ORIGINAL IN FILE]

Ken Bernstein, AICP, Principal City Planner Shannon Ryan, Senior City Planner
Office of Historic Resources Office of Historic Resources

[SIGNED ORIGINAL IN FILE] [SIGNED ORIGINAL IN FILE]
Lambert M. Giessinger, Preservation Architect Melissa Jones, City Planning Associate
Office of Historic Resources Office of Historic Resources

Attachment: Historic-Cultural Monument Application
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SUMMARY

The Jay Risk Standard Oil Co. Service Station is a one-story commercial building located on the
north side of W. Colorado Boulevard between Mt. Royal Drive and Vincent Avenue in Eagle Rock.
It was constructed in 1919 for Standard Oil of California, utilizing the “House with Canopy”
vernacular service station design. In 1931, the subject structure was moved by John Milton ‘Jay’
Risk (1889-1963) from Standard Oil’s main plant and maintenance facility at 1726-1756 N. Spring
Street, across from the Standard Oil Company Sales Department Building/Woman'’s Building
(1727 N. Spring St., HCM #1160), to its current location on Colorado Boulevard, which functioned
as a segment of the U.S. Highway 66 (Route 66) beginning around 1934. Standard Oil's main
plant and maintenance facility appears to have stored, sold, moved, and possibly constructed
service stations and related buildings; it is unclear if the subject structure was an active service
station from 1919 to 1931, but it served the Eagle Rock community as an oil service station from
1931 to 1939. In 1939, the oil service station was converted into a fruit and vegetable market and
later, beginning in 1947, it served as a plumbing office.

The widespread use of the automobile came in the years just before the United States entered
the First World War in 1917. Up until that time the passenger car was a luxury item. Overall, auto
registration in Los Angeles County, numbering less than 20,000 in 1910, exceeded 100,000 by
1920 and by 1930 had reached almost 800,000. The increase in popular ownership came about
through the development of an affordable car, specifically the Ford Model T, which was first
introduced in 1908.

Beginning in the early 1900s, there emerged new building types — from gas stations to drive-in
restaurants — which served the motorist. However, the most numerous were gas stations. The
result of the need to serve a large number of cars in a safe manner off the street, and the creation
of an effective standardized pump, led to the emergence of the service station as a free-standing
structure. The most important force behind the emergence of the free-standing service station
was the oil industry. As early as 1905 some oil companies, such as Standard Oil of California,
began experimenting with free-standing stations that sold only their brand of gasoline. Soon local
investors constructed buildings and then contracted with the oil companies. By the First World
War stations were being opened across the country at the rate of 1,200 per year. By the late
1920s gas stations had become one of the most common building types in the city. The number
of gasoline stations of all types in Los Angeles increased from about 170 in 1920 to almost 700
by 1925, and to more than 1,500 by 1930. The result was that, by 1930, Los Angeles had an
oversupply; many did not survive the Great Depression. Nonetheless, the modest filling station
had established itself as the dominant form of automobile-derived architecture and it became the
model for other auto-oriented commercial building types.

The Standard Oil Company was established by John D. Rockefeller in Ohio in 1870 and by the
late 1870s, Standard Oil had become one of the largest companies in the world. The company
first established itself in California by opening an office in San Francisco in 1878 and soon after
acquired oil-related assets in Southern California. In 1907, Standard Oil of California introduced
the first gasoline drive-up facility at its Seattle kerosene refinery. By the mid-1910s, the Standard
Oil Company was the largest oil producer in the state, and a decade later, it was the leading
gasoline marketer in the western United States. In 1914, Standard Oil acquired National Supply
Stations, Inc.’s chain of 34 service stations which were located in the greater Los Angeles area,
San Diego, San Francisco, and Oakland; the chain grew to 2,200 stations by 1925 with locations
in Oregon and Washington state, as well as California. In 1926, the company purchased Pacific
Oil Company, which increased its production capacity by nearly 50 percent. The company
reorganized its corporate structure and assumed the new name Standard Oil Company of
California, now known as the Chevron Corporation.
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Rectangular in plan, the subject structure is of steel-frame construction with sheet steel walls and
a 15-foot canopy extending south. The roof is side-gabled with standing seam metal cladding.
The primary, south-facing facade features a centrally located entrance consisting of a wooden
door with divided-lites between two large fixed multi-lite windows and is fronted by a canopy.The
south edge of the canopy is supported by two steel I-beam posts and a simple steel skeletal
structure forms an elegant arch, meeting in the center. The east- and west-facing fagades feature
two large, steel, divided-lite pivot windows. The rear, north-facing facade has a single, fixed
divided-lite window on the east side, and a large door opening on the south side.

John Milton ‘Jay’ Risk was born in Scotland, Missouri in 1889. He moved to Los Angeles in 1921,
first working in shoe sales. In 1922, Risk opened a garage on Bunker Hill, at 709 W. 3rd Street,
and in 1929 he married and moved to Eagle Rock. As of the 1930 Census, Risk was listed as a
manager of a radio shop, but from 1934 to 1936, he was listed in the Los Angeles directory as an
oil driller. He passed away in 1963.

The subject structure has experienced several alterations that include the removal of the wooden
entrance door, the door on the rear, north-facing facade, and several steel, multi-lite windows at
unknown dates. In addition, it lost its drive-through street access with the development of the
surrounding business block in the mid 1950s.

SurveyLA, the citywide historic resources survey, identified the subject structure as individually
eligible for listing under the national, state, and local designation programs as an excellent and
very rare example of a 1919 service station in Eagle Rock. It was also noted that this structure
appears to be the oldest remaining service station building in the city.

CRITERIA

The criterion is the Cultural Heritage Ordinance which defines a historical or cultural monument
as any site (including significant trees or other plant life located thereon), building or structure of
particular historic or cultural significance to the City of Los Angeles if it meets at least one of the
following criteria:

1. Is identified with important events of national, state, or local history, or exemplifies
significant contributions to the broad cultural, economic or social history of the nation,
state, city or community;

2. Is associated with the lives of historic personages important to national, state, city, or local
history; or

3. Embodies the distinctive characteristics of a style, type, period, or method of construction;
or represents a notable work of a master designer, builder, or architect whose individual
genius influenced his or her age.

FINDINGS

Based on the facts set forth in the summary and application, the Commission determines that the
application is complete and that the property may be significant enough to warrant further
investigation as a potential Historic-Cultural Monument.
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BACKGROUND

On September 9, 2022, the Director of Planning determined that the application for the proposed
designation of the subject property as an Historic-Cultural Monument was complete. The original
30-day expiration date of October 9, 2022, per Los Angeles Administrative Code Section
22.171.10(e)1 is tolled, and a revised date will be determined pursuant to the Mayor’s March 21,
2020 Public Order Under City of Los Angeles Emergency Authority re: Tolling of Deadlines
Prescribed in the Municipal Code and April 17, 2020 Public Order Under City of Los Angeles
Emergency Authority re: Tolling HCIDLA Deadlines and Revising Expiration of Emergency
Orders.

The time to act on this item has been tolled for the duration of the local emergency period. Please
note that other State law provisions may also apply.
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Include copies of permits in the nomination packet. Make sure to list any major alterations for which there are no permits, as well.
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Listed in the National Register of Historic Places

Listed in the California Register of Historical Resources
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Contributing feature
Located in an Historic Preservation Overlay Zone (HPOZ)

Non-contributing feature
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status by an historic resources survey(s) SurveyLA Northeast Los Angeles

Other historical or cultural resource designations:

6. APPLICABLE HISTORIC-CULTURAL MONUMENT CRITERIA

The proposed monument exemplifies the following Cultural Heritage Ordinance Criteria (Section 22.171.7):

] 1. Isidentified with important events of national, state, or local history, or exemplifies significant contributions to the
broad cultural, economic or social history of the nation, state, city or community.

2. s associated with the lives of historic personages important to national, state, city, or local history.

0 3. Embodies the distinctive characteristics of a style, type, period, or method of construction; or represents a notable
work of a master designer, builder, or architect whose individual genius influenced his or her age.
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designated an Historic-Cultural Monument. Type your response on separate documents and attach them to this

form.

A. Proposed Monument Description - Describe the proposed monument’s physical characteristics and
relationship to its surrounding environment. Expand on sections 2 and 3 with a more detailed descrip-
tion of the site. Expand on section 4 and discuss the construction/alteration history in detail if that is
necessary to explain the proposed monument’s current form. Identify and describe any character-
defining elements, structures, interior spaces, or landscape features.

B. Statement of Significance - Address the proposed monument’s historic, cultural, and/or architec-
tural significance by discussing how it satisfies the HCM criteria you selected in Section 6. You must
support your argument with substantial evidence and analysis. The Statement of Significance is your
main argument for designation so it is important to substantiate any claims you make with supporting

documentation and research.

8. CONTACT INFORMATION
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Name: David Dellinger Company:  Eagle Rock Valley Historical Society

Street Address: 2225 Colorado Blvd. City: Eagle Rock State: ca
Zip:90041 Phone Number: 323-257-1357 Email: david.dellinger@me.com
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Street Address: 1655 W Colorado Blvd City: Los Angeles State:CA
Zip: 90041 Phone Number: Email:

Nomination Preparer/Applicant’s Representative
Name: Steven Luftman Company:
Street Address: 1212 S Orlando Ave City: Los Angeles State: CA

Zip: 90035 Phone Number: 310-503-9958 Email: sluftman@yahoo.com
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Jay Risk Standard Oil Co. Service Station / 1659 West Colorado Boulevard
Historic-Cultural Monument Nomination Continuation Sheet

A. Property Description
Site

The property at 1659 W. Colorado Blvd. (subject building) contains a single room service station with canopy.
The property occupies a rectangular parcel of 3,002.8 square feet, situated in the Fagle Rock area of Northeast
Los Angeles. It is on the north side Colorado Blvd. between Vincent Ave. to the east and Mt. Royal Dr. to the
west. An alley runs north of the property, parallel to Colorado Blvd.

The block is composed primarily of one- and two-story commercial buildings. The earliest buildings on the
south side of the block were constructed in the early 1920s. With the exception of the subject building, the
north side of the block was built from the late 1940s to the late 1950s. A tree planted medium runs down the
center of Colorado Blvd, replacing the Los Angeles Railway streetcar line that ran east on Colorado to the
terminus at Townsend Ave. (one-block east of the subject building) until 1948.

The area's topography is generally flat along the Colorado Blvd. business district, but slopes higher to the north
as the streets rise toward the Verdugo Mountains. This section of Colorado Blvd generally adheres to a
rectilinear street grid that is oriented toward the cardinal directions.

With the exception of Jay Risk Standard Oil Co. Service Station, the buildings along Colorado Blvd. have little
to no setbacks from the sidewalk. The subject service station is set back 13 feet from the sidewalk. 1659 W.
Colorado Blvd. has vehicular access from Colorado Blvd. via a curb-cut driveway. The subject building is placed
close to the east property line, and is set seven feet from the west property line. The west side-yard, the setback
from the sidewalk, and the vehicle service area under the canopy is paved in asphalt. Behind the subject building,
to the north, a rear yard consumes two-thirds of the property. The majority of the yard is approximately five-
feet below the level of the alley north of the subject property, as the alley is at a higher elevation than Colorado.
The rear-yard is accessed via nine concrete stairs along the northwest corner of the yard. The rear yard is mostly
paved with unfinished terracotta tiles, and enclosed within a vertical-board wood fence.

Exterior

Originally built in 1919 and moved to the current site at 1659 W. Colorado Blvd. in 1931, Jay Risk Standard Oil
Co. Service Station is a 14’ by 14’ steel building, with a canopy extending 15’ south of the building from the
roof. This form of service station design has become known as “House with a Canopy”.

The overall plan is rectangular, including the canopy. The “house” part of the building consists of a steel-
framed, sheet steel-walled, single room office in a simple vernacular style. There are large steel divided-light
windows on all four sides of the building. The front street-facing fagade features a centrally located doorway,
between two large fixed divided-light windows. The wooden door, which has recently been removed from its
frame, is divided into nine panels. The panels were originally glass, but have been replaced with a single plywood
backing.

The cast and west facades feature one large fenestration on each wall. The single opening is filled with two large,
steel, divided 12-light windows. The rear window units on the east and west facades are pivot windows, that
swing open horizontally from the center of the top two-thirds of the unit. The north fagade at the rear features a
single fixed divided 12-light window on the east side, and a large door opening on the south side. The rear door
is missing.



The building features a standing seam metal roof with an open side-gable roof reaching a height of 12 feet at the
ridge. The ridge runs east-west. On the north and south side of the roof-ridge are brackets that originally held
the Standard Oil of California sign. The canopy continues forward, toward Colorado Blvd. from the roof.

The south edge of the canopy is supported by two steel I-beam posts. The posts are located at the southwest
and southeast corners of the canopy. A simple steel skeletal structure forms an elegant arch, meeting in the
center of the south edge of the canopy.

Alterations

There are no building permits for alterations from the Los Angeles Department of Building and Safety
(LADBS). The building’s appearance shows that Jay Risk Standard Oil Co. Service Station is currently in a
state of semi-disassembly. Both the front and rear doors have been removed. Three of the seven multi-light
steel window units have been removed from their fenestration. The window units appear to be leaning against
a wall on site, and we have been told the doors are being safely stored off-site.

The service area under the canopy lost its drive-through street access with the development of the block in
the late 1940s.

Character-Defining Features
Site

e Setting on the historic Eagle Rock construction alignment of U. S. Highway 66 (Route 606)
e 13-foot setback from the sidewalk

e Vehicle service area under the canopy paved in asphalt

Exterior

e Rectangular building in plan

e Single room building in a simple vernacular style

e  Steel frame

e  Sheet steel walls

e Side-gabled roof

e Standing seam steel roof

e Standing seam steel canopy extending forward from roof

e Roof-ridge brackets that originally held the Standard Oil of California sign
e Llarge, steel, divided-light windows on all four sides of the building

e Pivot windows on east and west elevations

e  Centrally located front doorway

e Two steel I-beams post forming skeletal structure arch supporting south-edge of the canopy

e Reflects corporate design associated with Standard Oil of California

e Visible steel structure

e Concrete foundation floor



B. Statement of Significance

Summary

Jay Risk Standard Oil Co. Service Station meets the following criteria for designation as a Los Angeles Historic-
Cultural Monument (HCM):

It reflects the broad cultural, political, economic, and social history of the nation, state and community.

It embodies the distinctive characteristics of an architectural-type specimen inberently valuable for a study of a period, style, or
meethod of construction.

Built in 1919, the one-room service station at 1659 W. Colorado Blvd. was originally constructed on Spring

Street in Downtown Los Angeles. It was moved to its current site in 1931.1

It is a rare surviving example of a type of groundbreaking and influential construction and form that became the

standard for service stations from the eatly development of service stations.

Starting in 1914, Standard Oil of California pioneered this design as the standardization of the service station. By
the mid-1920s there were thousands of these Standard Oil stations in the western United States. The form,
which became known as “House with Canopy” was copied by other oil suppliers to distribute their products
throughout the country.

It represents the early era (1914-1930s) of service station design in general, and more specifically it reflects the
corporate design associated with Standard Oil of California pioneering design standardization that served as part
of its larger branding program.

Jay Risk Standard Oil Co. Setvice Station illustrates the evolution of the gas/setvice station as a significant
commercial building type related to the automobile and Los Angeles’ flourishing car culture. The subject
building shows how a building type’s design and site layout are shaped by accommodation to the needs of
automobile as well as the stylistic and economic trends of the day.2

Additionally, the subject building is significant for its association with U. S. Highway 66 (Route 66) during the
Eagle Rock construction alignment. It was an automotive serving business providing goods and services to the
traveling public along U.S. Highway 60, in addition to serving local and regional needs.?

1 City of Los Angeles, "Historic Resources Survey Report, Northeast Los Angeles Community Plan Area," ed. Office of Historic

Resources Department of City Planning, SurveyLA (Los Angeles: City of Los Angeles, 2017).

2 "Theme: Commercial Development and the Automobile, 1910-1970," ed. Office of Historic Resources Department of City
Planning, LOS ANGELES CITYWIDE HISTORIC CONTEXT STATEMENT

Context: COMMERCIAL DEVELOPMENT, 1850-1980 (Los Angeles: City of Los Angeles, August 2016).

3 United States of America, "National Register of Historic Places Multiple Property Documentation Form, U.S. Highway 66 in

California," ed. Department of the Intetior (United States2011).



In 2013, the SurveyLLA citywide historic resources inventory identified the subject building as an “Excellent and
very rare example of a 1919 service station in Eagle Rock; this property appears to be the oldest remaining
service station building in the city.”

SurveyLLA gave it the following California Historic Resources Status Codes:

e 3S: Appears eligible for National Register as an individual property through SurveyLLA or other survey
evaluation

e 3CS: Appears eligible for California Register as an individual property through SurveyLLA or other
survey evaluation

e 583: Appears to be individually eligible for local listing or designation through SurveyLLA or other
survey evaluation

The subject service station is also noted within the description of the Eagle Rock community in Gebhard and
Winter’s seminal guidebook, An Architectural Guidebook to Los Angeles.*

Eagle Rock Development?

The subject building is located within the Northeast Los Angeles Community Plan Area (CPA). The area was
home to the Chumash and Tongva people. ¢ In 1784, three years after the nearby El Pueblo de Los Angeles
was founded, Spanish Governor Pedro Fages granted all the lands between the Los Angeles River and the
Arroyo Seco, including the area now known as Eagle Rock, to Jose Maria Verdugo. The Rancho San Rafael,

as it was known, covered approximately 36,000 acres.

Located in the northern portion of the CPA, Eagle Rock is situated between the Verdugo Hills to the north, the
City of Pasadena to the east, Highland Park and Glassell Park to the south, and the City of Glendale to the west.
The area is traversed by the Glendale (2) Freeway, Eagle Rock Boulevard, and Figueroa Street, which run north-
south; and the Ventura (134) Freeway, Colorado Boulevard, and York Boulevard, which run east-west.

When Alfred Chapman and Andrew Glassell began to subdivide their Rancho San Rafael land, one of the
largest parcels was purchased by Benjamin Dreyfus and subsequently acquired by a consortium led by Charles
Watts, who also founded the community of Watts in South Los Angeles. This parcel included the 8,000 acres
which today encompasses the majority of FEagle Rock. The remainder of the land comprising present-day Eagle
Rock — the area between Loleta Avenue to the west and the Arroyo Seco to the east — was purchased by
Prudent Beaudry, a real estate developer and one-time mayor of Los Angeles, then resold to Alexander Robert
Campbell-Johnston and later subdivided by his heirs. In its early days, Eagle Rock was an agricultural
community which produced fruit, vegetables, and flowers. By the end of the 19th century truck farms, including
the Gates Strawberry Ranch, covered much of the area.

The expansion of the rail system transformed the settlement into a thriving residential community. In 1906, the
Los Angeles Railway completed the Eagle Rock line, connecting Eagle Rock to downtown Los Angeles. Local
rail extensions like these made it feasible for downtown workers to commute from outlying communities. As a

4 K. Bernstein and S. Schafer, Preserving Los Angeles: How Historic Places Can Transform America's Cities (Angel City Press, 2021); D.
Gebhard, R. Winter, and R. Inman, An Architectnral Guidebook to 1os Angeles (Angel City Press, 2018).

5> Excerpted from City of Los Angeles, "Histotic Resources Survey Report, Northeast Los Angeles Community Plan Area."

6 "Native Land Digital," Native Land Digital, https://native-land.ca.



result, home sites situated near the rail lines became highly desirable, and the announcement of the forthcoming
rail line motivated the subdivision of many residential tracts in the area. Additional lines included a local line
which ran to Glendale and Montrose, and a line along Figueroa Street to Eagle Rock to supply the Edison
power station and serve the area known as Eagle Rock Park.

With the arrival of an expanded transportation network after the turn-of-the-20th century, the character of
Eagle Rock began to evolve away from its agricultural origins toward a more suburban residential community.
Farmland started to be subdivided into residential tracts as early as 1903, when the Gates Strawberry Ranch
lands were parceled into single-family lots. Concurrently, new civic and commercial buildings were constructed
to meet the demands of the growing community. The Edwards & Wildey Building, constructed in 1915, served
as the hub of the burgeoning commercial district at the intersection of Eagle Rock and Colorado Boulevards
and spurred further commercial construction. New social service institutions and social groups were also
established; one of the best remaining examples of their facilities is the Eagle Rock Women’s Twentieth Century
Club (HCM #537, National Register listed), constructed in 1914.

In 1911, the community of Eagle Rock incorporated as an independent city. A post office soon followed in
1912, along with the Eagle Rock Library (HCM #292), completed in 1916 with a Carnegie grant. For the first
few years, Eagle Rock’s city hall was housed in a commercial building on Eagle Rock Boulevard (then called
Central Avenue). A dedicated City Hall building (HCM #59) was not completed until 1922, and originally
included the fire and police departments. One of the most significant catalysts for development also took place
during this period: the relocation of Occidental College from Highland Park to its present location in Eagle
Rock. Founded in 1887, the institution outgrew several smaller facilities before establishing a permanent campus
in 1914, designed by noted architect Myron Hunt.

The new city continued to grow as Eagle Rock experienced the effects of Southern California’s population
boom in the eatly 1920s. By 1923, the population of Eagle Rock had ballooned from 600 to approximately
2,500. That same year, with the threat of an inadequate water supply and the promise of an upgraded school
system, city residents voted to consolidate with the City of Los Angeles. With the resultant increase in
construction, new residential neighborhoods were established. One of the more upscale neighborhoods was
located along Hill Drive overlooking the Eagle Rock Valley. Eagle Rock became a cultural enclave of sorts,
attracting a number of visual artists, as well as writer John Steinbeck. Mr. Steinbeck lived in Eagle Rock for
extended periods during the 1920s and 1930s while visiting his close friend Carlton Sheffield. Mr. Sheffield was
a professor of journalism at Occidental College.”

In the 1930s, Colorado Boulevard functioned as a segment of Route 66, and many automobile-related
businesses and travel facilities were constructed along the corridor, including hotels, restaurants, service stations
and auto courts.

Much of Eagle Rock’s built environment reflects its development in the eatly 20th century, with a handful of
farmhouses dating from the 1880s and 1890s. The neighborhood is dominated by single-family residential
development, with few multi- family properties, primarily bungalow courts. Common architectural styles include
Craftsman, American Colonial Revival, Spanish Colonial Revival, and Tudor Revival, and a few notable
examples of Mid-Century Modernism. Commercial development is largely concentrated along automobile

7'Tim Sanders, "The Faster Master Plaster Casters, Adventures of John Steinbeck in Eagle Rock," Eagle Rock Valley Histotical

Society, https://www.caglerockhistoty.org/articles /faster-master-plastet-castets/.



corridors and former streetcar lines, such as Broadway, Eagle Rock Boulevard, and York Boulevard, as well as a
segment of historic Route 66 along Colorado Boulevard.

The Automobile and Los Angeles8

It is impossible to understand Angeleno architecture of the twentieth century without considering the impact
of the automobile. This impact can best be seen in those buildings created to provide for the needs of the car.

Beginning in the early 1900s, there emerged new building types — from gas stations to drive-in restaurants —
which served the motorist. These new building types led to new relationships with the street and surrounding
buildings. The automobile produced buildings that stood alone, each surrounded by its own driveway and
parking lot. The idea of a wall of unified background buildings, broken in places by a foreground building
sitting in isolated splendor, no longer fit the increasingly auto-oriented city.

Utilitarian designers accepted the car as a given and tried to devise building forms that directly served its
needs. They had little concern for architectural flourish or the larger urban setting. At its best, the utilitarian
approach resulted in well-proportioned and crisply detailed industrial-style structures.

The sprawling nature of greater Los Angeles was actually the product of an earlier system of transportation,
the interurban railroad. The development of the interurban, beginning in the late 1800s and reaching its peak
with the Pacific Electric network in the early 1900s, allowed the residents of the city and its surrounding
suburbs to spread out over the flatlands. Yet this was still a settlement pattern of clusters around interurban
stops. Large expanses of vacant land sat between these settlements. It was the automobile that allowed

Angelenos to fill in the expanses.

The widespread use of the automobile came in the years just before the United States entered the First World
War in 1917. Up until that time the passenger car was a luxury item. Registration of passenger cars in Los
Angeles County grew from 20,000 in 1910 to more than 100,000 in 1920, and almost 800,000 by 1930. The
increase in popular ownership came about through the development of an affordable car, specifically the
Ford Model T.

The Model T was first introduced in 1908. By the end of the First World War, in 1918, Ford had half the
market for automobiles in the United States, and by 1920 every other motor car in the world was a Model T.

In great part because of the Model T, the 1920s were the years during which the motor car became the

dominant mode of transportation in Southern California.

The increasing presence of the car after the First World War caused Los Angeles to rethink the nature of its
street system. There were some major eatly thoroughfares laid out by both the city and the county,
particularly after the Board of Supervisors issued $3.5 million in bonds for road construction in 1909.
Typically, streets had been created by subdividers, with the higher-priced developments having some kind of
hard surface provided. Otherwise, property owners created improvement districts of their own to finance the

grading and surfacing of their streets. Between 1904 and 1914 Los Angeles was able to improve neatly 500

8 Excerpted from City of Los Angeles, "Theme: Commercial Development and the Automobile, 1910-1970." With additional

information



miles of streets. These included hundreds of residential lanes and such north-south and east-west arteries as
Central Avenue, Vermont Avenue, Adams Boulevard and Pico Boulevard. These routes were generally thirty
to fifty feet wide and topped by a firm surface. By 1915 all of the main thoroughfares had paving of some
sofrt.

These improvements were soon overwhelmed by the increase in car ownership during the early 1920s. This
increase prompted community leaders to hire the firm of landscape architect Frederick Law Olmsted in 1924
to prepare a survey of conditions and recommendations for the improvement of the city’s streets, and to
introduce the idea for a network of parkways. This study, entitled A Major Traffic Street Plan for Los Angeles was
comprehensive, reaching south to Hyde Park and 110th Street, with Beverly Hills as the western edge, and to
the southwest as far as Culver City. Of immediate importance was how the plan differentiated between local
and arterial streets. Local streets served neighborhood residents and businesses, while arterial streets allowed
traffic to move from one neighborhood or district to another.

The funding for the Olmsted plan was justified to the public as the best way to accommodate the increasing
number of cars. During the next six years, Los Angeles worked to carry out the widening and straightening
recommended by the Olmsted Plan, and by the first years of the Great Depression of the 1930s, most of
these arterial routes had been reconfigured as major distribution streets. These improved arterials were also
designated for commerce. The first comprehensive zoning ordinance was drafted in 1925. Business was
relegated both to its traditional downtown district and to the major distribution streets identified in the plan.

An automobile-centered architecture began to emerge where businesses could stretch out along these arterial

streets, such as Colorado Boulevard, and provide their mobilized customers plenty of space.
U.S. Highway 66 (Route 66)°

During the 1930s Route 66 was routed from Pasadena, over the Colorado Street Bridge, through Eagle Rock.
The Highway went west on Colorado Blvd., and south on Eagle Rock Boulevard to connect to the
Downtown Los Angeles terminus. Documentation gives the dates ranging from 1934 until 1940 for this
alighment for Route 66.!!

9 "Silver Lake Texaco Setvice Station Historic-Cultural Monument Application Che-2018-2846-Hem," ed. Office of Historic
Resources Department of City Planning (Los Angeles: City of Los Angeles, 2018).

10 Excerpted from United States of America, "National Register of Histotic Places Multiple Property Documentation Form, U.S.

Highway 66 in California." With additional information.

11'The Route 66 Corridor Preservation Program, under the U. S. Dept. of the Interior, lists the dates of the Eagle Rock alignment as
1934-1936. The U.S. Highway 66 in California Multiple Property Documentation Form lists the alignment as 1938-1940. Scott
Piotrowski's book, Finding the Mother Road, lists 1934 as the Eagle Rock alignment. The website TheRoute-66.com Online Travel Guide lists
the date as 1935. S. R. Piotrowski, Finding the End of the Mother Road: Route 66 in Ios Angeles County (66 Productions, 2005); United States
of America, "National Register of Historic Places Multiple Property Documentation Form, U.S. Highway 66 in California."; "1935
Alignment through Eagle Rock," Road Ttip Joutneys, https://www.theroute-66.com/los-angeles.html#eagle66; United States of
America, "Route 66 Corridor Preservation Program, Letter. Kaisa Barthuli," ed. Department of the Interior (Santa Fe, New

Mexico2022).



Established in 1926, U.S. Highway 66 was part of the first nationally designated highway system and was one
of 13 original U.S. Highways designated in California. It was one of three Southern California east-west
highways that extended from the Colorado River to the Pacific Coast.

The Highway played an important role as a migratory route that facilitated large population shifts from the
East, Midwest, and Southwest into Southern California. From the time of its designation as a part of the U.S.
Highway system in 1926, U.S. Highway 66 served as a main route for those seeking a warmer climate in the
1920s Sunshine Migration; jobs in agriculture and industry in the midst of the Great Depression during the
1930s; and employment in the defense industries leading up to and during World War II and during the
postwar period. These migrations made this part of the country, particularly Southern California, one of the
fastest growing parts of the country in the first half of the twentieth century. These waves of western
migration were important in reshaping California, especially Southern California and the Los Angeles basin, in

terms of demographics, culture, and growth.

U.S. Highway 66 also served as a major corridor for tourists seeking to experience California and the
Southwest, and provided a transportation system for local and regional residents.

The presence of the highway led to substantial numbers of restaurants, motels, tourist courts, service garages,
gas stations, and other tourist and auto businesses in direct response to traffic along the route. In the urban
Los Angeles basin roughly contained within Los Angeles County, commercial development along the route
served the traveling public along U.S. Highway 66, which become more dispersed as migrants and tourist
reached the end of the route, and also provided goods and services to the large numbers of local residents.
The pattern of commercial development seen in auto and tourism businesses due to their close proximity to
U.S. Highway 66 provides an important representation of the commercial development.

Automobile services, including gas stations, service stations, automobile dealerships and garages, car washes,
and drive-in markets, like the subject building are significant for providing goods and services to the traveling
public along U.S. Highway 66, in addition to serving local and regional needs.

All alignments of Route 66 are important, as they tell the full story of the highway including engineering,
construction, social, commercial and other developmental history of the road.!2

Early Gasoline Station Building Forms
The subject building is of one the earliest gasoline station design forms, known as the House with Canopy.

Early automobile owners typically obtained fuel through local wholesale distributors associated with automobile-
related businesses. These businesses distributed gasoline often purchased at livery and dry goods stores in crude
containers that allowed the product to be funneled into automobile tanks.!3

12"Route 66 Cortidor Preservation Program, Letter. Kaisa Barthuli."

13 John A. Jakle, "The American Gasoline Station, 1920 to 1970," Journal of American Culture 1, no. 3 (1978); J. A. Jakle and K. A.
Sculle, The Gas Station in America, Creating the North American Landscape (Johns Hopkins University Press, 1994); Janna Baron,
"Gassing Up. A 20th-Century Form, the Gas Station Evolved," Preservation Eastern Newsletter 4, no. 2 (1997); R. Francis, Black Gold in
California: The Story of California Petrolenm Industry, Industry Series (Historical Publishing Network, 2016).



In 1907, Standard Oil of California introduced the first gasoline drive-up facility at its Seattle kerosene refinery.
In 1909 the American Gasoline Company of St. Louis, a Shell agent, built the first “drive-in” station to be
located apart from bulk plant facilities. Central Oil Co of Flint, Michigan built the first structure specially
designed for gasoline distribution in 1910.

The Curbside. The term filling station first applied to curbside pumps. These “stations” were installed along
streets in front of grocery, hardware, and other stores.

The Shed. The first off-street, drive-in gasoline stations took the form of a small shed. The sheds housed
automotive oil, grease, and equipment.

The House. The early curbside and shed-type filling stations were generally located around the central business
districts. As oil companies expanded distribution, they invested in neighborhood service stations on residential
streets. These service station was made to look like a small house to blend in, reducing neighborhood
opposition.

The House with Canopy. The addition of a canopy integrated into the roof of the small house or cottage

produced another distinctive type of gasoline station, allowing service in inclement weather.
Standard Oil of California Service Station (now Chevron)

The Standard Oil Trust, created by John D. Rockefeller in 1863, owned some 90 percent of the nation’s refinery
capacity and controlled some 85 percent of the total petroleum market when it was dissolved under the
Sherman Antitrust Act. The Trust was divided into 34 separate companies, and Standard O1l of California was
one of the seven biggest companies, which were known as the "Seven Sisters". They dominated the wotld oil

industry in the early 20th century.!4

Standard of California launched its chain of look-alike gasoline stations in 1914, largely in response to
competition from Shell. Standard first tried to establish a chain of four stations in 1912, but was denied
permission by the City of Los Angeles on the grounds that they would be hazardous and unsightly and reduce
property values in the city. In 1914 Standard acquired National Supply Stations, Inc.’s chain of 34 stations. The
service stations were located in the greater Los Angeles area, San Diego, San Francisco, and Oakland. The chain
grew to 2,200 stations by 1925 with locations in Oregon and Washington state, as well as California.!5

The National Supply Stations took the same basic form as the subject building, a simple 12 x 15 walled in glass
with a canopy extending over pumps, they were painted red, white, and blue (Chevron, Standard Oil of
California’s successor company, still uses red, white, and blue as their corporate identity colors.). There are two

primary differences between the original 1914 stations and the subject model that was first introduced in 1918:

14 Jakle, "The American Gasoline Station, 1920 to 1970."; Jakle and Sculle, The Gas Station in America.

15 The Gas Station in America.



the 1914 version was wood construction, whereas the 1918 model was steel, and the canopy was supported by a
single post, while the 1918 version has two posts supporting the canopy.!¢

The Standard Oil of California form became the prevailing design form for the service station of the eatly
1920s.17

Standard Oil of California was storing, selling, moving, and possibly building these ubiquitous services stations
from their Main Plant and Maintenance Facilities at 1726-1756 N. Spring St., across Spring Street from the
Standard Oil Company Sales Depatrtment Building/Woman’s Building (1727 N. Spring St., HCM 1160). Thete
are permits for moving 36 buildings from the facility; 13 appear to be the same type as the subject building. By
1925 there appears to be over 250 of these stations in the Los Angeles area alone. This is the last remaining

example of this innovative design.!8
Development of the Jay Risk Standard Oil Co. Service Station

J M. Risk is listed as the owner on the 1931 building moving permit. John Milton Risk (1889-1963), known as
Jay, was born in Scotland, Missouri. He moved to Los Angeles in 1921, first working in shoe sales. In 1922 Mr.
Risk opened a garage on Bunker Hill, at 709 W. 3td St. At the time he was living in a four-flat in Silver Lake, at
1277 Elysian Park Ave.?®

In 1929 he married, and moved to a home in Eagle Rock two blocks from Occidental College, at 2116
Ridgeview Ave. In 1931 he purchased the subject building from Standard Oil of California and moved it to its
current location at 1659 W. Colorado Blvd., a mile and a half from his home.

When Jay Risk moved the service station to Eagle Rock, the entire north side of the block was undeveloped. As
there were no buildings on the block, the service station could operate as it was designed to: cars could pull up
under the canopy, get served, and then pull out onto Colorado Blvd. The lots on either side of the subject
property remained undeveloped until 1949.

It is not clear if Mr. Risk ran the service station when he moved it to Eagle Rock; in the 1930 Census he listed
his profession as manager of a radio shop. Jay Risk is listed in the Los Angeles directory in the years of 1934 to
1936 as an oil driller, and the service station is listed as ] M Risk 1659 Colorado under the Oil and Lubricants
Dealer section of the directory during those years.

16 Jakle, "The American Gasoline Station, 1920 to 1970."; Jakle and Sculle, The Gas Station in America; Baron, "Gassing Up. A 20th-
Centuty Form, the Gas Station Evolved."; City of Los Angeles, "Theme: Commetcial Development and the Automobile, 1910-1970.";

California Standard Oil Company of, Bulletin - Standard Oil Company of California (Standard Oil Company of California., 1918).
17 City of Los Angeles, "Theme: Commercial Development and the Automobile, 1910-1970," 25.
18 Standard Oil of California, "The Best Buy in Town," Los Angeles Times, February 8 1925.

19 LADBS 25426 December 1, 1931; We were not able to accurately trace the ownership records for the property prior to 1959 due to

Los Angeles County Covid-19 restrictions and a broken water pipe at the Los Angeles County Map Book Archives.



Clyde A. Brown advertised the station starting in April 1932, shortly after it was moved to Eagle Rock. Mr.
Brown is also listed as running the station in the Los Angeles directory from 1932-1933.20

William R. Sykes ran the subject service station starting in 1938. Mr. Sykes manufactured and sold Travel-Eze
trailers as well as installing “Lecos”. Lecos were advertised as a mechanical marvel that could give you 40
mpg. Additionally, William Sykes offered to re-silver the reflectors in your car’s headlights.?!

In late January 1939 Ernest B. Ames, a local rancher, opened the Stop & Shop fruit and vegetable market at
the subject building. Sometime around 1947 George Clairville purchased the Jay Risk Standard Oil Co.
Service Station and used it as an office for his plumbing company. In 1949 Mzr. Clairville built a modern office
and home next door at 1655 W. Colorado Blvd. Over the following decades the Clairville family expanded
the building at 1655 W. Colorado Blvd., but left the subject building untouched. In February 2022 the
Clairville family sold both 1659 and 1655 W. Colorado Blvd to Paradigm Collaboration LLC.22

Period of Significance

The period of significance for the Jay Risk Standard Oil Co. Service Station is defined as 1919 for its
significance as an example of one of the eatliest extant gas/service station in Los Angeles., reflecting the year
of the building’s construction. The period of significance for the Jay Risk Standard Oil Co. Service Station as
an example of the evolution of the gas/service station as a significant commercial building type related to the
automobile and Los Angeles’ flourishing car culture is defined as 1919 to 1939, when the subject building use
was changed from automotive service to fruit stand.

The period of significance for the Jay Risk Standard Oil Co. Service Station for its association with the Eagle
Rock construction alignment of U.S. Highway 66 (Route 606) is defined as 1934 to 1939, when the building’s
use was changed from automotive service to fruit stand.

20 "C. A. Brown Buys out Oil Setvice," Eagle Rock Advertiser, May 6 1932.
2L "Leco Saves," Highland Park News-Herald, January 9 1939.

22 "Market’s Opening Decided Success," Eagle Rock Advertiser, January 26 1939.



Integrity

s the Jay Risk Standard Oil Co. Service Station appears unaltered, it retains a high degtee of integrity.

As the Jay Risk Standard Oil Co. S Station app Itered, it ret high deg f integrity

Historic integrity is the ability of a property to convey its significance and is defined as the “authenticity of a
roperty’s historic identity, evidence e survival o rsical characteristics that existed during the

property’s hist dentity, evidenced by th 1 of physical characteristics that existed during th

property’s prehistoric or historic period.”?? The aspects of integrity, as defined by the National Park Service,

are location, design, setting, materials, workmanship, feeling and association.

e Location: The subject building was built in 1919, and moved to the current location in 1931. As its
current location became an alignment of U. S. Route 66, the building gains additional significance in
this aspect of integrity.

e Design: The subject property retains most of its character-defining features from its period of
construction, and therefore is able to convey its historic significance as an early example of a house
with a canopy service station. With the exception of the missing signage and driveway access, the
exterior remains unchanged from its original construction, and retains its character-defining features.

e Setting: The property is located along the 1934 to 1940 alignment of U. S. Highway 66 in the Eagle
Rock neighborhood of Los Angeles, amongst other Route 66 serving businesses along the corridor,
including hotels, restaurants, service stations and auto courts.

e Materials: The subject building has recently been partially disassembled, with the removal of doors
and windows. Most of these material remain on site. The building’s primary structure remains
unaltered, dating to its period of significance. Because the property retains almost all of its materials
from the time of its construction, this element of integrity remains highly intact.

e  Workmanship: The subject property’s original workmanship is still evident through its overall
construction method and materials. The property retains its integrity of workmanship.

e Feeling: The property retains almost all of its essential character-defining features and appearance
from its historical period. As such, the building retains integrity of feeling.

e  Association: Though the building no longer operates as a service station, the subject property
appears almost exactly as it did when it was first constructed by Standard O1l of California in 1919.

Thus, it retains integrity of association.

23 U.S. Department of the Interior, National Register Bulletin 16A: How to Complete the National Register Registration Form
(Washington D.C.: National Park Service, 1997), 4.
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Exhibit 2a. Vicinity Map



Magenta star indicates the subject building at 1659 W Colorado Blvd. (Apple 2022)



Exhibit 2b. Tract Map



Tract 4616 was subdivided in 1921, page 1 of 2. The Magenta outline indicates the future location of the Jay Risk Standard Oil Co Service Station.
: Royal Drive was renamed Mt. RoyatBrive, Yirgf_nia Avenue was _re'named Vincent Ave. :
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Tract 4616 page 2 of 2, subject property is on page 1.
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Exhibit 2¢c. Sanborn Maps



1930 Sanborn Map Co. The magenta outline indicates the future location of Jay Risk Standard Oil Co Service Station.
A year before Mr. Risk moved the subject building to the site, the block was undeveloped.
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